Cambridge Community Safety Partnership

- 20 July 2021
- 09:30-12:00
- Storey's Field Centre, following government social distancing guidance

Minutes

Board

Debbie Kaye (Chair) Cambridge City Council (Community Services)

Alex Collis Cambridge City Council

Jessica Kennedy Cambridgeshire County Council Paul Rogerson (Vice Chair) Cambridgeshire Constabulary

Members

Lynda Kilkelly Cambridge City Council (Community Services)

James Morgan Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Michelle Reynolds University of Cambridge

Louise Walker (Minutes) Cambridge City Council (Community Safety Team)
Kat Webb Cambridgeshire County Council Research Group

Guests

Clare Cook Cambridgeshire County Council – County Lines Lead Vickie Crompton Cambridgeshire County Council - Domestic Abuse and

Sexual Violence Partnership

John Richards Cambridge City Council (Environmental Services)

1. Welcome, housekeeping, introductions and apologies

- 1.1 The Chair, Debbie Kaye, welcomed everyone to the Cambridge Community Safety Partnership (CSP) meeting and asked everyone to wear masks when moving around the meeting room and building. There were no attending members of the public.
- 1.2 Apologies were received from Board Members; James Ball (Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service), Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group, Mark Freeman (Cambridge Council For Voluntary Service), Maggie Page (Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust) and Matthew Ryder (National Probation Trust, which has replaced Bedfordshire, Northamptonshire, Cambridgeshire and Hertfordshire Community Rehabilitation Company Limited (BeNCH CRC Ltd)), There were apologies from Members; British Transport Police, Hannah Hancock (Cambridge Business Against Crime (CAMBAC), Susie Talbot (Cambridgeshire County Council Public Health

- Commissioning), David Walmsley (Anglia Ruskin University), and also Dawn Bere (Department of Work and Pensions (DWP)).
- 1.3 The Chair expressed the CSP's gratitude to those who were no longer on the CSP for their excellent work and support: Nicky Massey (replaced by Alex Collis), Lisa Riddle, former CSP Vice Chair (replaced by Jessica Kennedy), Adam Ratcliffe (replaced by Hannah Hancock) and Leigh Robert (replaced by Kat Webb).

2. Presentation: Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill 2021

- 2.1 Chief Inspector Paul Rogerson, CSP Vice Chair, provided a presentation on the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill 2021. This was based on collated information provided by the Home Office and did not represent views or opinions Corporately or otherwise of Cambridgeshire Police. It was agreed to be shared to the CSP afterwards.

 Action point 07/01
- 2.2 Several comments were raised about the Bill, which was in its second reading at the House of Lords on the expected timeline, as outlined below:
 - The process to share comments on the Bill and that these need to be raised with the Cambridge MP, Daniel Zeichner.
 - There are different interpretations of the current legislation by the public, judges, and geographically, so the new legislation will be easier for everyone to understand.
 - That the Human Rights Act remains unchanged.
 - Involvement of different communities in Cambridge such as the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller. This will be planned in future relevant discussion forums as well as to continue the liaison work such as with protest organisers and groups to ensure ongoing positive relationships.
- 2.3 The Chair thanked Paul Rogerson for his presentation and said that the Board may want to examine the wider equalities agenda and deeper dive into areas known of concern such as the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller and to think about how to spend time on this.

3. Pre-advised questions from the general public

3.1 There were no pre-advised questions received.

4. Minutes of 9 February 2021: Agreement

4.1 The Minutes of 9 February 2021 were agreed and would go forward for publication.

5. Action Points: Review

5.1 All action points from the previous meeting were discussed and closed.

6. Update on CSP Priorities

6.1 Priority: Safeguarding young people against violence and exploitation including Transforming Lives

Paul Rogerson spoke to the report presented and highlighted that the Transforming Lives work had been rolled out across the six districts with a robust framework to support it. He said that as work was developing that different options were being considered by the districts such as Huntingdon commissioning a three-way contract with The Cam Academy Trust as part of their CSP funding by the Police and Crime Commissioner.

- 6.2 Update on CCSP Transformation Topic Serious Violence: Young People and County Lines project funded by the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
- 6.2.1 Lynda Kilkelly provided an update on the Cambridge County Lines project. Firstly, she thanked Clare Tevlin, Project Co-ordinator, whose contract will end in September, for her hard work and progress on the project within a short time. The key points about the CSP project were:
 - Survey feedback showed the need to raise awareness to young people, and adults, about issues related to county lines and criminal exploitation.
 - AlterEgo Creative Solutions Ltd was commissioned to produce a film addressing issues around county lines and the grooming process to provide an impact that could be used to target people in different age groups across the city, would have longevity and be fairly "covid-proof".
 - A resource pack for teachers / community leaders / youth workers was produced alongside the film to ensure that the issues could be explored when watching the film.
 - A session has already been delivered in a Cambridge school to 180 Year
 7 students. The feedback so far has been very positive.
 - Over the summer months, the film with the resource pack will be shared with youth and community groups, and in September to schools. It is hoped to host two in-person productions at schools in Cambridge.
 - "Train the facilitator" sessions for colleagues are organised, which will help move the project to its next phase of sharing countywide.
 - With the roll out across the county, the project has been named 'Cambs Against County Lines'. It is planned to develop the film to include footage from across the county to make it relevant to anyone who watches it.
 - Social media and a web page with signposting have been set up https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/cambs-against-county-lines

Action point 07/02

- 6.2.2 Clare Cook said that this work fits into the wider plan for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Child Exploitation Strategic Group to provide a universal model and to engage the county CSPs in how to keep young people safe.
- 6.2.3 The Chair thanked Lynda Kilkelly for the update and to everyone involved in the multi-agency Task and Finish Group, which involves CSP members. She said that the project was a great achievement during the pandemic and was pleased that it can be a tool adapted to be used countywide.

6.3 Priority: Listening to community needs and responding together to reduce harm

- 6.3.1 Paul Rogerson spoke to the report presented. For the new method of Police engagement with the public which will be piloted in North Cambridge over the summer, it was confirmed that the invitation to the two-week survey period had been shared with relevant councillors. In response, Alex Collis said that she would ensure councillor representation for those wards.
- 6.3.2 Lynda Kilkelly said that with Operation Carmel a large list of issues is gathered, which involve several organisations and that it is a long administrative task to receive answers, then to pass these back to the public and how to address this. Vickie Crompton commented that the previous County Council 'Shape Your Place' website offered one portal to report issues across the county from potholes to drug dealing. Debbie Kaye said that this new initiative offered an opportunity for the public to raise issues which may not be in the Police's remit and how to offer a one stop-shop to services to make the most of this public engagement and link to Think Communities. It was agreed that communities wanted to lead working together during the pandemic, and that a listening and enabling approach was required going forward. It was agreed for a small CSP Task Group to be set up to explore this further.

 Action point 07/03

6.4 Update Cycle Crime Prevention Task Group

- 6.4.1 John Richards spoke to the report as presented and the success with a multi-agency approach with the Police and Crime Commissioner interested in attending the group in the future. James Morgan said that Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was pleased to join the initiative to be able to raise and discuss relevant issues.
- 6.4.2 Debbie Kaye thanked John Richards and said that it would be useful for the CSP to have an update again in February 2022, particularly on data regarding cycle theft and recovery.

7. Review of multi-agency working groups delivering the priority areas following the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions

- 7.1 Paul Rogerson proposed a review of the multi-agency groups linked to the CSP to examine and understand their governance, reporting and focus in relation to Think Communities and safeguarding.
- 7.2 It was raised that thorough understanding of the groups was required and that this may take time. It was agreed that the CSP Multi-Agency Steering Group would examine the groups and provide an update.

 Action point 07/04

8. Domestic Abuse Act Update and Cambridgeshire Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Report Q4 2020/21

- 8.1 Vickie Crompton spoke to the report as presented. She clarified that Tier 2 includes only local authority landlords, not private landlords, and that the new county roles working in child to parent abuse can be linked to the countywide county lines work as some cases may relate to the child being exploited.
- 8.2 The Chair thanked Vickie Crompton for her updates.

9. Home Office Safer Streets Round One: Home Security Project Final Update

9.1 The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner report was noted as well as the success of the project.

10. Non-Personal Information Sharing Agreement and Updated CSP Terms of Reference: Agreement

10.1 Louise Walker provided the background to the Non-Personal Information Sharing Agreement and updated CSP Terms of Reference. Both were agreed, noting that as all the CSP information is in the public domain that a Non-Personal Information Sharing Agreement was no longer required.

11. Cambridge CSP Timeline: Agreement

11.1 Louise Walker spoke to the report and the timeline of meetings was agreed.

12. Cambridgeshire Police and Crime Panel – focus

12.1 It was noted that the county CSPs had all been contacted to share their views about the focus for the Police and Crime Panel. It was agreed for the Chair to draft a response to include the CSP Priorities, Transformation Topic and Cycle Crime Prevention Task Group as well as a contribution from James Ball.

Action point 07/05

13. Countywide Strategic Safety Board - Police and Crime Plan Consultation

13.1 Louise Walker provided a reminder for responses for the Police and Crime Plan by 23 July so that a collated CSP response can be made.

14. Any other business

- 14.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group had invited the CSP's to link with their local Primary Care Networks. Debbie Kaye will raise this at the South Alliance Network of the Public Health Networks, which she attends. Action point 07/06
- 14.2 Mark Freeman had raised the future locations of CSP meetings and whether these could be held online for time management, reducing cost as well as carbon footprint. As some members of the CSP had found it beneficial to be able to attend the meeting in person, including to be able to network and build relationships, it was agreed that a hybrid approach could be investigated so that attendees could meet face to face as well as virtually. Action point 07/07

15. Key messages from the meeting today to share with our organisations and the public

- 15.1 The Chair summarised the key message to be shared from the meeting:
 - The importance of having work, which is flexible and transferable, and can be shared across the county.
 - To think about a deep dive on equalities and for the CSP Multi-Agency Steering Group to consider this and how to do a sense check on our partnership working.
 - For the opportunities with Think Communities and how we can reset for the benefit of our communities.
 - 15.2 The Chair thanked the Board and Members for their contributions, and to Louise Walker for the excellent organisation of the meeting, which was closed at 12:00.